
PLANNING 

BOARD 

April 17, 2024 

7:00 PM 

Regular Meeting 

Camden Public Library 

Boardroom



Agenda – Camden County Planning Board Page 2 of 2 

April 17, 2024 

Agenda 

Camden County Planning Board 

Regular Meeting 

April 17, 2024, 7:00 PM 

Boardroom, Camden Public Library 

ITEM I. Call to Order & Welcome 

ITEM II. Consideration of Agenda 

ITEM III. Consideration of Minutes 

A. Planning Board Minutes

ITEM IV. Old Business 

ITEM V. New Business 

A. Crouse Tract Zoning Map Amendment

ITEM VI. Information from Board and Staff 

ITEM VII. Consider Date of Next Meeting 

ITEM VIII. Adjourn 



Camden County Planning Board 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

Consideration of Minutes 

Item Number: 

Meeting Date:  

Submitted By: 

Item Title  

3.A

April 17, 2024 

Amber Curling, Planning Board 

Prepared by: Amber Curling 

Planning Board Minutes 

Attachments:  1_PBminutes_2024-01_17-final (DOCX) 

2_RezoningStaffReportPB-UpdatedMinutes (DOCX) 

3_TextAmendmentsOrdinance_2023-01-17 (DOCX) 

3.A

Packet Pg. 3



` 

Camden County Planning Board 

Regular Meeting 

January 17, 2024; 7:00 PM 

Camden County Library - Board Room 

Camden, North Carolina 

MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Camden County Planning board was held on January 17, 2024 in the 

boardroom Camden County Library in Camden, North Carolina. 

ITEM 1. CALL TO ORDER & WELCOME 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Steven Bradshaw at 7:00 PM. Also Present:  Vice-

Chairman Nathan Lilley, Board Members Lee Powell, Roger Lambertson, Tom White, Ray 

Albertson, and David Bundy. 

Administration Staff Present: Planning Director Amber Curling, Clerk to the Boards Karen 

Davis and Macey Carver. 

ITEM II. CONSIDERATION OF AGENDA 

Motion to approve the Agenda as presented. 

RESULT: PASSED [7-0] 

MOVER: Tom White 

SECONDER:  Steven Bradshaw 

AYES: Steven Bradshaw, Nathan Lilley Lee Powell, Roger Lambertson, Tom 

White, Ray Albertson, and David Bundy 

ITEM III. CONSIDERATION OF MINUTES  

Motion to approve minutes from October 18, 2024 as written. 

RESULT: PASSED [7-0] 

MOVER: Nathan Lilley 

SECONDER:  Steven Bradshaw 

AYES: Steven Bradshaw, Nathan Lilley Lee Powell, Roger Lambertson, Tom 

White, Ray Albertson, and David Bundy 

ITEM IV. OLD BUSINESS 

None. 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

ITEM V. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Zoning Map Amendment UDO 2024-02-103-Smith and LaFlamme

• Planning Director Amber Curling presented the Staff Report (incorporated

herein after as Attachment A) which included the following:

• An Application for a Zoning Map Amendment has been submitted by Brian

Smith.  The application is to rezone the 10-acre parcel from Rural Residential

(RR) and Neighborhood Residential (NR) to only Rural Residential.  The

application package includes the Rezoning Application, the Deed, the

Neighborhood Meeting Information and Plat.  The Application is generally

complete.

• A Neighborhood Meeting was held on September 26, 2023. A second meeting

was held November 24, 2023.  Neighbors attended the September meeting. no

attendance at the November 24th meeting.  There are some concerns and

questions from neighbors.

• The property is located on the north west corner of Upton Road and Seymour

Drive in the Courthouse Core Village.  Currently the parcel is vacant land.

The surrounding property uses are Residential lots, Farmlands, Wetlands,

Woods and Religious Institutions.

• The parcel approximately 10.08 total acres with is Zoned as approximately 5

acres Rural Residential Zoning District and approximately 5 acres

Neighborhood Residential Zoning District.

• The current Zoning District to be changed is Neighborhood Residential (NR)

which serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban portions of the

County, to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors.

The district is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a

neighborhood setting at moderate densities.  Agricultural uses are limited in

order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character.

• The proposed Zoning District is the Rural Residential (RR).  The district is

established to accommodate low density residential neighborhoods and

supporting uses on lots near bona fide farms and agricultural areas in the rural

portion of the County.  The district is intended to accommodate residential

development in ways that will not interfere with agricultural activity or

negatively impact the rural character of the County.  The district

accommodates several differing agricultural uses and homes. District

regulations discourage uses that interfere with the development of residential

dwellings or that are detrimental to the rural nature of the district.

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

• According to the CAMA Land Suitability Plan the property is Very High,

Moderate and Very Low in Land Suitability.

• According to the Wetlands Map the property has some Wetlands. The majority

being Managed Pines.

• The property is not located in Watershed.  Flood Zones X, Shaded X and AE

are located on the property.

• The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan identifies the parcel as

Rural Residential District One to Two Acre lots of residential.  The intention,

of these areas, is to serve as a buffer between rural preservation areas and more

intense development. The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent

with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan because the location

to serve as a buffer between rural preservation areas and more intense

development, should not be located within the Courthouse Core Village.

• The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the CAMA Future Land Use

Maps which identifies the majority of property as Medium Density Residential

and Low Density Residential.  With a very small area on the property

identified as Conservation.  Medium Density Residential is designated by a

mixture of single-family dwelling types in relatively close proximity to a core

village.  This district is intended to restrict the encroachment of incompatible

business uses in established residential areas.

• Water lines are located adjacent to the property along Upton Road and

Seymour Drive.  Sewer is not available.  The property is served by the South

Camden Fire District.  And Staff finds that the proposed zoning change will

have minimal impact on Schools and Traffic.

• Board members asks about Special Use Permit Application details.

• Amber Curling explains the applicant is also applying for a Special Use

Permit.  The Public Hearing for the Special Use Permit Application will be

placed on the Board of Commissioners Agenda.  It is not reviewed by the

Planning Board.  The Special Use Permit is dependent on the Text Amendment

being approved.

B. Text Amendment UDO 2024-02-103-Smith and LaFlamme

• Planning Director Amber Curling presented the Staff Report (incorporated

herein after as Attachment B) which included the following:

• Ordinance No. 2024-02-02 is a proposed text amendment to the Unified

Development Ordinance submitted by Brian Smith.  Mr. Smith is proposed text

amendment is to 151.4 Use Regulations of the Unified Development

Ordinance or the UDO.  The specific sections in 151.4.5 Accessory Uses is

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

151.4.5.4 of the Table of Allowable Locations and 151.4.5.5 Standards for 

Specific Accessory Uses. 

• The proposed text amendment is to add Sawmill as an Accessory Use

permitted in the Rural Residential Zoning District to the Table 4.5.4 Common

Accessory Use Table.  Standards for Specific Accessory Uses to include

specifics about a Sawmill as an Accessory Use with the following specific

language: .1.  Mobile or Portable Sawmill:  A sawing or cutting machine used

to turn logs into lumber, whether trailered or truck-mounted; Capable of easily

being moved, set up and operated on a site; Not attached or fixed in location.

2. Stationary Sawmill:  A fixed structure mounted on a foundation for the

purpose of turning logs into lumber; Includes the entire operational area:  log

sorting yard (s), milling machine (s), sorting area (s), storage area (s),

administration area (s), maintenance (s).

• Amber Curling confirms the applicants Text Amendment was for a Sawmill to

be permitted with a Special Use Permit.

• Discussion with the Board about the split zoning of property and confirmation

all 10 acres would be zoned Rural Residential if approved.

• Mr. Brian Smith presents information about the rezoning and text amendment

application.  Mr. Smith states that for his property to be zoned half and half

just does not make any sense and he wants one zoning district not two zoning

districts for his parcel.  Mr. Smith discusses the confusion with two zoning

districts and the permitted uses allowed in one zoning district but not the other.

• Chair Bradshaw asks for example of a conflicting use.

• Mr. Smith gives animals, farm stands, and parking of heavy trucks/trailers.

• Discussion of uses continues between Mr. Smith and Chair Bradshaw between

accessory uses and principal uses establishing some differences in the

Neighborhood and Rural Residential Zoning Districts.

• Mr. Smith continued stating this plan came about from us sitting down with the

County Manager, Erin Burke. The request of a change to the UDO is

essentially for some standard in Camden to allow a sawmill or disallow. There

is nothing that I have seen that is written that states that you cannot have a

sawmill.  He states all the applications may not be approved and the text

amendment would benefit someone else however it was submitted for clarity.

• Mr. Smith does not agree with the Staff Findings.  He does not understand the

value of Land Use Plans.

• Roger Lambertson and Mr. Smith discuss location of sawmill on property.  Mr.

Smith states ideal location towards rear of property not front.

• Nathan Lilley states it would make sense to rezone the whole thing to rural

residential to restrict building.

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

• Discussion continues about the 1-acre parcel owned by Camden County, the

parcel leased by Mediacom and sunflowers being grow on the 10-acre parcel.

• Chair Bradshaw commented about the need for the County to revisit the

current zoning districts and develop zoning district consist with the Core

Village Plan.

• Chair Bradshaw states to his understanding the intended uses of the property

are permitted with the current zoning and he does not see a compelling reason

to rezone it.  This does not include rezoning for the sawmill.

Public Comments for Zoning Map Amendment 

• Lindsey Smith (Laflamme) states that the property is a Bona Fide Farm they

have animals and are not required to go by the zoning laws as long as what

they are doing is farm related.  They have a tax-exempt form with an ID

number.  Her confusion is where the non-farm related things/activities are

permitted due to split zoning.

• Mike Gall is a retired neighbor.  He is upset about the amount of large trucks

and mud on the street from property in the Core Village with commercial

contracts.

• Amber Curling clarifies who receives notices and when.

• Catherine Carabine an Isaac Court neighbor expressed concern about health,

safety and well being of children with noisy activities affecting air quality.

• Eldon Young a neighbor states who was not informed of all the applications or

meetings.  He contacted neighbors to hold a meeting and discuss the

applications.  He would prefer rezoning not be approved.

• Tommy Harrison asks Mrs. Smith (LaFlamme), about due diligence when

property was bought.  Discussion continues - Was is sold as a farm? Was it on

your agents remarks? Was the property residential? and Potential subdividing?

• Amber Curling clarifies the following the Planning Board Members make a

recommendation to the Board of Commissioners.  The meeting will take place

on February 5th, 2024 at 7:00 pm. The notification letters will be sent out

tomorrow, 01/18/2024 notifying all neighbors within 300 ft of the property

about the Public Hearing.

• Board Members discuss the rezoning to approve or deny application.

Motion to deny zoning map amendment. 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

• RESULT:  PASSED [6-1] 

• MOVER:  Tom White 

• SECONDER:  Steven Bradshaw

• AYES: Steven Bradshaw, Nathan Lilley Lee Powell, Roger Lambertson, Tom 

White, and Ray Albertson 

• NAYES:  David Bundy 

Public Comments for the Text Amendment to the UDO 

• Chair and Members discuss text amendment.

• David Hicks, a neighbor, discusses being familiar with sawmilling process and

it does not belong in residential neighborhood.

• Roger Lambertson then asks, do we have a sawmill in the county? & gets

responses from the public stating that yes, there are multiple.

• Tommy Harrison discusses the continuous noise from the Smith’s portable

sawmill on property.  He feels the use will lessen the value and enjoyment of

property.  He is opposed to text amendment.

• Eldon Young speaking for Isaac Ct group opposed to text amendment.  The

trucks and other equipment are a problem for the road as well as being noise.

He feels the sawmill use should not be permitted in the Core Village area.

• Chair Steve Bradshaw and Roger Lambertson discuss appropriate places or

situations in the County allowing sawmills.

• Chair Steve Bradshaw states, disapproving this text amendment doesn’t mean

that someone can’t have a portable sawmill.  Continuous use of a sawmill is

manufacturing lumber which is a business.  I don’t personally think that any of

the residential areas should have a sawmill located in them.

Motion to deny the text amendment. 

• RESULT: PASSED [7-0]

• MOVER: Steven Bradshaw

• SECONDER: Tom White

• AYES:  Steven Bradshaw, Nathan Lilley Lee Powell, Roger Lambertson, Tom White,

Ray Albertson, and David Bundy

ITEM VI. INFORMATION FROM BOARD AND STAFF 

None. 

ITEM VII. CONSIDER DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting is scheduled for February 21, 2024. 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

ITEM VIIII. ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn. 

RESULT: Passed [7-0] 

MOVER: Ray Albertson 

SECONDER: Steven Bradshaw 

AYES: Steven Bradshaw, Nathan Lilley Lee Powell, Roger Lambertson, Tom 

White, Ray Albertson, and David Bundy 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_P
B

m
in

u
te

s_
20

24
-0

1_
17

-f
in

al
  (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

The GIS maps, application, deed, plat, neighborhood minutes and neighborhood comments are herein 

incorporated by reference and can be found in the January 17, 2024 Planning Board Packet located in 

the Planning Department. 

Attachment A: 

Staff Finding of the Facts Report 

UDO 2023-10-85 

 Zoning Map Amendment  

Ordinance 2023-02-01 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

File Reference: 2023-10-85 

Project Name:   Parcel NW corner Upton 

Road and Seymour Drive 

PIN: 02-8934-02-56-8337-0000

Applicant:  Brian Smith 

Address:   202 McPherson Road 

 South Mills, NC 27976 

Phone:  804-386-7811

Email: bcsmith53@hotmail.com

Agent for Applicant:  Owner 

Address: same as above 

Phone:  same as above 

Email:   same as above 

Current Owner of Record:  Brian Smith and 

Lindsey M. LaFlamme 

Meeting Dates: 

November 24, 2023 Neighborhood Meeting 

January 17, 2023 Planning Board Meeting 

 Application Received: October 12, 2023 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

Application Fee paid:  $650.00 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application

B. Neighborhood Meeting Comments

C. Neighborhood Meeting Notification Letter

D. Deed

E. Plat

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

REQUEST:  The request is for a zoning map amendment from Rural Residential and Neighborhood 

Residential Zoning Districts to Rural Residential Zoning District only.   

Description:  The parcel identified by parcel ID number 02-8934-02-56-8337-0000 is, located on the 

north west corner of Upton Road and Seymour Drive in the Courthouse Township and Courthouse Core 

Village.  The parcel approximately 10.08 total acres with approximately 5 acres Rural Residential and 

approximately 5 acres Neighborhood Residential. 

3.A.b

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

B
-U

p
d

at
ed

M
in

u
te

s 
 (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

Zoning Map Amendment from the Rural Residential and Neighborhood Residential 

Zoning Districts to only the Rural Residential Zoning District: 

Rural Residential (RR) Purpose Statement (Article 151.3.5.3) 

The Rural Residential (RR) district is established to accommodate low density residential neighborhoods 

and supporting uses on lots near bona fide farms and agricultural areas in the rural portion of the 

County.  The district is intended to accommodate residential development in ways that will not interfere 

with agricultural activity or negatively impact the rural character of the County. One of the primary tools 

for character protection is the requirement to configure residential subdivisions of more than five lots as 

conservation subdivisions.  The conservation subdivision approach seeks to minimize the visibility of 

new residential development from adjacent roadways through proper placement and screening.  The 

district accommodates several differing agricultural uses and single-family detached homes.  It also 

allows supporting uses like educational facilities, parks, public safety facilities, and utilities.  District 

regulations discourage uses that interfere with the development of residential dwellings or that are 

detrimental to the rural nature of the district. 

Rezoning from the following Zoning District: 

Neighborhood Residential Zoning District 151.3.5.5 

The Neighborhood Residential (NR) district serves as a transition district from the rural and suburban 

portions of the County to areas proximate to village centers and major commercial corridors. The district 

is intended to accommodate single-family detached homes in a neighborhood setting at moderate 

densities. Mobile and manufactured homes on individual lots, conservation subdivisions, and 

agricultural uses are limited in order to preserve the district’s neighborhood character. Manufactured 

homes are not allowed on lots within 5,280 linear feet of a village center boundary. The district’s 

40,000-square-foot minimum lot area may be reduced when lots are within one mile of a designated 

village center boundary and served by public sewer. District regulations discourage uses that interfere 

with the development of residential neighborhoods or that are detrimental to the district’s single-family 

detached neighborhood character.  

SITE DATA 
Size of Lots:  Approximately 10 acres 

Flood Zone:  Most of parcel is X 

Zoning District(s): Rural Residential (RR) and Neighborhood Residential (NR) 

Existing Land Uses: Vacant 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

North South East West 

Zoning Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Rural 

Residential 

(RR) 

Rural Residential 

(RR 

Rural Residential 

(RR and 

Neighborhood 

Residential (NR) 

Use Wetlands, Residential 

Lots and Church 

Residential 

Lots 

Residential Lots, 

& Farmland 

Open Space 

Wetlands Vacant 

Property 

Proposed Use(s) – manufacturing and production of wood with sawmill and sales of products 

3.A.b

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

B
-U

p
d

at
ed

M
in

u
te

s 
 (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Water lines are located adjacent to property along Upton Road and Seymour Drive 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  South Camden Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning will have no impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning should have no impact on Traffic.  

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

majority of property identified as Medium Density Residential and Low Density Residential.  

Conservation with a small area on the property is identified as Conservation.  The most restrictive, 

Medium Density Residential designated by a mixture of single-family dwelling types in relatively close 

proximity to core village.  The district is intended to restrict the encroachment of incompatible business 

uses in established residential areas. 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan (Adopted 2012) identifies the parcel as Rural 

Residential District One to Two Acre lots of residential areas serving as a buffer between rural 

preservation areas and more intense development. The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent 

with the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan. The location to serve as a buffer between rural 

preservation areas and more intense development, should not be in the Courthouse Core Village.  

Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 Property abuts Seymour Drive and Upton Road. 

Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

N/A 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS FOR THE PLANNING BOARD TO CONSIDER: 

1. Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?

Yes ☐ No ☒
Reasoning:  In the appropriate location rural residential zoning district works well.  The rural residential

zoning district is intended to be a buffer between core village areas with density and areas intended to

preserve the of rural integrity of Camden County.

3.A.b

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

B
-U

p
d

at
ed

M
in

u
te

s 
 (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



` 

2. Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses?

Yes ☒ No ☐
Reasoning:  The proposed application is for growing agricultural items and a residence.  This is

permitted in the Rural Residential and Neighborhood Residential Zoning Districts.  Manufacturing and

production of materials is not permitted in a Residential Zoning District.

3. Is the request in accordance with the Camden County land use plans?

Yes ☐ No ☒
Reasoning:  The Future Land Use plans has the Core Villages designated with new development of core

villages utilizing infrastructure and preserving rural areas.

4. Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water

services, other utilities?

Yes ☐ No ☒
Reasoning:  The proposed rezoning and uses should not create a serious impact on traffic, parking or

utilities.

5. Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire

protection or the school system?

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The proposed rezoning and uses should not have an impact on other county services. 

6. Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will result in lessening the enjoyment

or use of adjacent properties?

Yes ☒ No ☐
Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise,

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances.

7. Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual

disturbances?

Yes ☒ No ☐
Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise,

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances.

8. Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of

precedents, or need for this type of use?

Yes ☐ No ☒
9. Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern?

Yes ☐ No ☒

Summary and Recommendations 

The proposed zoning map amendment is inconsistent the County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use 

Plan identifies the parcel as Rural Residential District One to Two Acre lots of residential areas however 

the location, as a buffer between rural preservation areas and more intense development, should not be 

in the Courthouse Core Village.  

The CAMA Land Use Plan is inconsistent in that the property is identified as Medium Density 

Residential and Low Density Residential.  The core village district is intended to restrict the 

encroachment of incompatible business uses in established residential areas. 

3.A.b

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_R
ez

o
n

in
g

S
ta

ff
R

ep
o

rt
P

B
-U

p
d

at
ed

M
in

u
te

s 
 (

P
la

n
n

in
g

 B
o

ar
d

 M
in

u
te

s)



The, application, neighborhood minutes and neighborhood comments are herein incorporated by 

reference and can be found in the January 17, 2024 Planning Board Packet located in the 

Planning Department. 

Attachment B: 

Ordinance No. 2023-02-02 
An Ordinance 

Amending the Camden County Code of Ordinances 
Camden County, North Carolina 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CAMDEN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS as follows: 

Article I:  Purpose 

The purpose of this Ordinance is to amend Chapter 151 of the Camden County Code of Ordinances of Camden 
County, North Carolina, which was originally adopted by the County Commissioners on January 1, 1998, and 
subsequently revised February 4, 2019 and subsequently amended, and as otherwise incorporated into the Camden 
County Code. 

Article II:  Construction 

For purposes of this Ordinance strikethrough words (strikethrough) shall be considered deletions to existing 
language. New language of proposed ordinance shall be shown in italics, underlined, and highlighted (italics). 

Article III:  Amending Camden County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 151 specifically 
Article 4 Use Regulations:  4.5 Accessory Uses Sections 4.5.4 Table of Allowable Locations and 4.5.5 

Standards for Specific Accessory Uses which shall read as follows: 

TABLE ERROR! REFERENCE SOURCE NOT FOUND.: COMMON ACCESSORY 
USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted  “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit  “·”= Prohibited 

ACCESSORY USE 

RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND. 

A
C

C
. 
U

S
E
-

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

C
P

 

W
L
 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

 

Accessory Dwelling Unit · P P P P P P P P P P · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Amateur Ham Radio · P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 

not 
found. 

Boat Lifts P P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Boat Ramps P P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

3.A.c

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
O

rd
in

an
ce

_2
02

3-
01

-1
7 

 (
P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s)



TABLE ERROR! REFERENCE SOURCE NOT FOUND.: COMMON ACCESSORY 
USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted  “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit  “·”= Prohibited 

ACCESSORY USE 

RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND. 

A
C

C
. 
U

S
E
-

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

C
P

 

W
L
 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

 

Cemetery, Family or Religious 
Institution 

· P P P S · P · · P · · · A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Child Care, Incidental · P P P P P P P P · · · · A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Community Agriculture S P P P P P P P P · · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Docks, Piers P P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 

not 
found. 

Drive-Through · · · · · · P P · P · P · A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Excavation · P · · · · · · · P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Gasoline Sales · · · · · · P P S P P P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Home Occupation · P P P P P P P P P P · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 

not 
found. 

Horse Stable · P P P P P · · · · · · · A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Housing for Poultry · P P P P · P · · P · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Ice House · · · · · · P P P P P P · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 

not 
found. 

3.A.c

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
O

rd
in

an
ce

_2
02

3-
01

-1
7 

 (
P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s)



TABLE ERROR! REFERENCE SOURCE NOT FOUND.: COMMON ACCESSORY 
USE TABLE 

“P”= Permitted  “S”= Permitted with Special Use Permit  “·”= Prohibited 

ACCESSORY USE 

RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL IND. 

A
C

C
. 
U

S
E
-

S
P

E
C

IF
IC

S
T

A
N

D
A

R
D

 

C
P

 

W
L
 

R
R

 

S
R

 

N
R

 

V
R

 

C
C

 

V
C

 

M
X

 

H
C

 

M
C

 

L
I 

H
I 

P
D

 

Outdoor Display and Sales · · · · · · P P P P · P · A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Outdoor Storage 
(Nonresidential) 

· · · · · · P P P P P P P A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Parking of Boats or Watercraft · P P P P P P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Parking of Heavy Trucks, 
Trailers in Residential Districts 

· P P S S · · · · · · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 

not 
found. 

Produce Stands · P P P · · P P P P · P · A 

Error! 

Reference 
source 

not 

found. 

Recreational Vehicles · P P P · · · · · P · · · A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Retail Sales from a Vehicle · S · · · · P P P P P P P A 

Error! 
Reference 

source 
not 

found. 

Sawmill S 4.5.5.W 

Solar Energy Equipment · P P P P P P P P P P P P A 4.5.5.WX  

Underground Storage Tanks · S · · · · P S · P P P P A XXY 

Wind Energy Conversion 
Facility, Small 

· P S S S S P P S P P P P A Y 

4.5.5 STANDARDS FOR SPECIFIC ACCESSORY USES 
W  Sawmill 

1. Mobile or Portable Sawmill
a. A sawing or cutting machine used to turn logs into lumber, whether trailered or truck-mounted.
b. Capable of easily being moved, set up and operated on a site.
c. Not attached or fixed in location

2. Stationary Sawmill
a. A fixed structure mounted on a foundation for the purpose of turning logs into lumber.
b. Includes the entire operational area:

i. log sorting yard (s)
ii. milling machine (s)

3.A.c

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
O

rd
in

an
ce

_2
02

3-
01

-1
7 

 (
P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s)



iii. sorting area (s)
iv. storage area (s)
v. administration area (s)
vi. maintenance (s)

W. X.  Solar Energy Equipment
Solar energy equipment shall comply with the following standards:

X. Y.  Underground Storage Tanks

Y. Z.  Wind Energy Conversion Facility, Small 

3.A.c

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_T
ex

tA
m

en
d

m
en

ts
O

rd
in

an
ce

_2
02

3-
01

-1
7 

 (
P

la
n

n
in

g
 B

o
ar

d
 M

in
u

te
s)



Camden County Planning Board 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY SHEET 

New Business 

Item Number: 

Meeting Date:  

Submitted By: 

Item Title  

5.A

April 17, 2024 

Attachments:  1_CrousePropertyRezoningStaffReportPB (DOCX) 

2_CamdenYard_Application_Attachments (PDF) 

3_Deed (PDF) 

4_2023Oct23-NeighborhoodMeeting (PDF) 

5_Proposed_OutlineDevelopmentAgreement (PDF) 

5.A

Packet Pg. 19

Amber Curling
Planning Board
Prepared by : Amber Curling

Crouse Tract Zoning Map Amendment



` 

STAFF REPORT 

UDO 2024-02-103 

 Zoning Map Amendment 

PROJECT INFORMATION 

File Reference: 2024-02-103 

Project Name:   The Crouse Tract 

PIN:   01-7008-00-26-3513.0000

Applicant:  Camden Yards LLC.
Address:  417-D Caratoke Highway 

Moyock NC, 27958 

Phone:  252-435-2718 

Email:  jold@qqhoc.com 

Current Owner of Record:  Camden Yards, 

LLC Address:  417-D Caratoke Highway 

Moyock NC, 27958 

Phone:  252-435-2718 

Email:  jold@qqhoc.com 

Meeting Dates: 

October 23, 2023 Neighborhood Meeting 

April 17, 2024  Planning Board Meeting 

 Application Received: 2/15/2024 

By:  Amber Curling, Planning 

Application Fee paid:  $10,650 Ck1021 

Completeness of Application:  Application is 

generally complete 

Documents received upon filing of application 

or otherwise included:  

A. Rezoning Application

B. Deed

C. Neighborhood Meeting Comments

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Request:  Camden Yards LLC is requesting a Zoning Map Amendment from Highway Commercial and 

Light Industrial zoning districts to Planned Development zoning district.   

Description:  The parcel identified with pin number 01.7082.00.26.3513.0000 of approximately 1010 

acres is located on the southeast corner of US Hwy 17 and Ponderosa Drive in the South Mills 

Township.  The parcel consists of approximately 110 acres on US Hwy 17 of Highway Commercial.  

The remaining acreage is zoned as Light Industrial 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Rezoning from the following Zoning Districts of Highway Commercial and Light Industrial:   

 

Highway Commercial Zoning District 151.3.6.5 

The Highway Commercial district is applied to lots along the County’s major roadways (e.g., US 158, 

US 17, NC 34, and NC 343) and is intended for automobile-oriented commercial development as well as 

large floorplate commercial uses and uses that require or generate truck traffic. The district also 

accommodates agricultural and institutional uses as well as higher density residential uses with a special 

use permit. New development in the HC district is grouped and configured to ensure regular lateral 

vehicular and pedestrian access along major transportation routes as a means of establishing a well-

connected transportation system. New development is configured to maintain high visual quality along 

the major roadway, or is fully screened from view. Sufficient spacing and screening is included along lot 

lines shared with adjacent residential zoning districts to ensure compatibility. New commercial and 

multi-family developments in the district are subject to the design standards in Article 151.5 

Development Standards. 

 

Light Industrial Zoning District 151.3.6.7 

The Light Industrial district is established to accommodate agricultural and light manufacturing uses, 

including assembly, fabrication, processing, distribution, storage, and wholesales sale of finished or 

semi-finished products from previously prepared materials. The district also allows commercial 

activities intended to serve the primary businesses in the district and their employees. Uses allowed in 

the district do not require large amounts of land or large building areas for operation nor large yard areas 

for isolation or protection from adjoining premises or activities. Activities take place almost entirely 

indoors and result in minimal exterior movement of vehicles, materials, and goods in areas around the 

district. Buildings are situated so as to have minimal visual impacts, and are well-screened from adjacent 

lower intensity uses. Heavy industrial uses and uses with significant adverse impacts on adjoining lands 

are prohibited. Single-family detached homes and other low-intensity uses which could interfere with 

industrial operations are also prohibited.  

 

Rezoning to the following Zoning District of Planned Development: 

 

Planned Development (PD) Purpose Statement (Article 151.3.6.3) 

The Planned Development (PD) district is established and intended to encourage innovative land 

planning and site design concepts that support a high quality of life and achieve a high quality of 

development, environmental sensitivity, energy efficiency, and other County goals and objectives by: 

• Reducing or diminishing inflexibility or uniform design that sometimes results from the strict 

application of zoning and development standards designed primarily for individual lots; 

• Allowing greater freedom in selecting the means of providing access, open space, and design 

amenities; 

• Allowing greater freedom in providing a well-integrated mix of residential and nonresidential 

land uses in the same development, including a mix of housing types, lot sizes, and densities; 

• Providing for efficient use of land resulting in smaller networks of utilities and streets and 

thereby lowering development and housing costs; and 

• Promoting quality design and environmentally sensitive development that respects surrounding 

established land use character and respects and takes advantage of a site’s natural and man-made 

features, such as trees, estuaries, shorelines, special flood hazard area, and historic features. 

  

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Vicinity Map:  South Mills Township

 

VA/NC Line 

Property 
Location 

Ponderosa Dr 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Zoning Map: 

 

Light Industrial 

Suburban Residential 

Rural Residential 

Rural 
Residential 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)

acurling
Stamp



` 

CAMA Land Suitability: 

Moderate 
Suitability

Low 
Suitability

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Wetlands Map and Not located in Watershed 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Floodplain Map 

  

Mostly Located in 
Flood Zone X 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

 
  

Rural Preservation 
Mixed Use 

Employment 

Residential 

1-2 Acres 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

CAMA Future Land Use Map 

 
  

Conservation 

Low Density 

Residential 

Conservation 

Light Industrial 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

 
 

Mining Overlay District 

 

Northwest Annex Buffer 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

SITE DATA 

Size of Lots:  Approximately 1010 acres                         

Flood Zone:  X and A 

Zoning District(s): Highway Commercial (HC) and Light Industrial (LI) 

Existing Land Uses: Farmland and Wooded 

 

Adjacent Zoning & Uses: 

 North South  East West 

Zoning Rural Residential, 

Suburban Residential, 

and Light Industrial 

Highway 

Commercial and 

Light Industrial 

Currituck County 

Line 

US Highway 17 

Use & size Mining Pits, 

Residential Lots, 

Woods & Farmland 

Woods Woods NA 

 

Proposed Use(s) – The proposed use is a Planned Development Subdivision with Phasing consisting of 

residential lots and commercial lots. 

 

INFRASTRUCTURE & COMMUNITY FACILITIES 

Water:  Not available 

Sewer:  Not available. 

Fire District:  South Mills Fire District. 

Schools:  Proposed zoning will have an impact on Schools.   

Traffic:  Proposed zoning will have impact on Traffic.  A Traffic Impact Analysis will be required at 

development stage. 
 

 

Summary  

 

CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The proposed rezoning is inconsistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan (Adopted 

2012).  The Comprehensive Future Land Use Map identifies 110 acres of the parcel as Mixed Use 

Employment and the remaining acres as Rural Preservation.  Rural Preservation promotes the continued 

use of working lands and protection of environmentally sensitive lands from more intense development.   
 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

majority of property identified as Light Industrial and the remaining identified as Conservation.  

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Conservation is designated to provide for effective long-term management of significant limited or 

irreplaceable areas. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

 

 Property abuts US Hwy 17. 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 
   

 

FINDINGS REGARDING ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS: 

 

1.  Will the proposed rezoning enhance the public health, safety or welfare? 

Yes ☒ No ☒ 

Reasoning: 

 

2. Is the entire range of permitted uses in the requested classification more appropriate than the 

range of uses in the existing classification? 

Yes ☒ No ☒ 

Reasoning 

 

 

SPECIFIC CAMA LAND USE QUESTIONS TO CONSIDER: 

 

1.  Does Camden County need more land in the zoning class requested?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plans.  The majority of Planned 

Developments are located in the South Mills Township 

 

2.  Is there other land in the county that would be more appropriate for the proposed uses? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The majority of Planned Developments are located in the South Mills Township.  

 

3.  Is the request in accordance with the Camden County land use plan? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  The rezoning is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plans.   

 

4.  Will the request have serious impact on traffic circulation, parking space, sewer and water 

services, other utilities? 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning:  The proposed Plan Development would consist of over 1500 dwelling units and 

commercial properties. 

 

5.  Will the request have an impact on other county services, including police protection, fire 

protection or the school system? 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Yes ☒ No ☐ 

Reasoning The proposed Plan Development would consist of over 1500 dwelling units and commercial 

properties. 

 

6.  Is there a good possibility that the request, as proposed, will resultin lessening the enjoyment or 

use of adjacent properties?   

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  Staff opinion is all uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause 

any possibility of lessening enjoyment or use of adjacent properties. 

 

7.  Will the request, as proposed cause serious noise, odors, light, activity, or unusual 

disturbances? 

Yes ☒ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All uses permitted in the requested zoning classification should not cause any serious noise, 

odors, light activity, or unusual disturbances. 

 

8.  Does the request raise serious legal questions such as spot zoning, hardship, violation of 

precedents, or need for this type of use? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

9.  Does the request impact any CAMA Areas of Environmental Concern? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

Reasoning:  All areas including environmental concern will be addressed through required permitting 

process of North Carolina State and Camden County. (CAMA permit, NCDEQ Erosion & Sediment 

Control permit, NCDEQ Stormwater permit, County drainage plan, Etc.) 

 

Summary: 
CONSISTENCY with PLANS and MAPS 

 

2035 Comprehensive Plan 

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☒ 

The County’s Comprehensive Future Land Use Map (Adopted 2012) shows the current parcel to be 

Mixed-Use Employment and Rural Preservation.  Village Mixed use areas include moderate to higher 

density mixed use including residential, commercial, and recreational uses.  The Working Lands are 

shown on the Future Land Use map as Rural Preservation.  Rural Preservation promotes the continued 

use of working lands and protection of environmentally sensitive lands from more intense development.  

And the small approximately half acre property is identified as One to Two Acre Rural Residential. 

 

CAMA Land Use Plan Policies & Objectives: 

 

 Consistent ☐  Inconsistent ☒ 

The CAMA Land Use Plan was adopted by the Camden County Board of Commissioners on April 4, 

2005.  The proposed zoning change is inconsistent in that the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the 

majority of property identified as Conservation.  Small areas on the water are identified as Low Density 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



` 

Residential.  Conservation is designated to provide for effective long term management of significant 

limited or irreplaceable areas. 

 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan  

 

 Consistent ☒  Inconsistent ☐ 

Property abuts US Hwy 17. 

 

 Other Plans officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners 

 N/A 

 

Recommendations: 
 

Planning Staff makes the following recommendations for either: 

 

Consistency Statement: 

 The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the 2035 Comprehensive Future Land Use Plan 

in that the Comprehensive Future Land Use Maps has the property identified as Mixed-Use Employment 

and Rural Preservation. 

The proposed zoning change is inconsistent with the 2005 CAMA Future Land Use Plan in that 

the CAMA Future Land Use Maps has the property identified as Industrial and Conservations. 

 

Motion for denial: 

 

Planning Staff recommends denial of the Zoning Map Amendment Application (UDO 2024-02-103 and 

Ordinance 2024-06-01) as the rezoning request is inconsistent with the Camden County Future Land 

Use Plans. 

 

If recommendation of the Board is for approval a need for the following motion: 

 

Motion to amend the Camden County Future Land Use Plan Maps. 

5.A.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

_C
ro

u
se

P
ro

p
er

ty
R

ez
o

n
in

g
S

ta
ff

R
ep

o
rt

P
B

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



PD-on plans

development

See attachments

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
am

d
en

Y
ar

d
_A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.b

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
am

d
en

Y
ar

d
_A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



ATTACHMENT TO APPLICATION 

Description of Project: 

 

The objective of this application is to build a community that is a creative design, providing a 

mix of different residential uses in close proximity to one another, while at the same time 

providing an efficient use of open space that promotes an active lifestyle and a strong sense 

of community.  Commercial development is also proposed to serve the needs of both the 

residents of the development and the nearby South Mills community.  Land is also being set 

aside for government facilities including land for schools, a police and fire station, and 

satellite county administrative offices. 

 

To put the project on context, the tract is just south of the VA/NC line, approximately one half 

mile from the Coastal Virginia Commerce Park, a 1420 acre first phase of an industrial park is 

being developed by the City of Chesapeake and the State of Virginia.  No residential 

development will be included in the commerce park, so hundreds of future employees will 

need places to live, places to shop and eat, and Camden County can be the beneficiary of the 

development near the state line that will have minimal impact on traffic, can provide for 

public services and provide for some amenities that one currently doesn’t find in Camden 

County, that can be available to County residents. 

 

The site is 6.7 miles north of South Mills, so should not have any negative impact on the South 

Mills community.  However, South Mills residents can take a short ride north to go shopping, 

go out to eat, or enjoy some recreational opportunities. 

 

A:  The purpose of the request is to rezone a 1009 acre tract from its current zoning of 

approximately 120 acre of Highway Commercial and 889 acres of Light Industrial to Planned 

Development.  The development will support the changing conditions outlined above with 

regard to the Coastal Virginia Commerce Park and will provide a positive economic benefit to 

Camden County and its residents. 

 

B:  The rezoning will not cause noise, odors, light, activity or unusual disturbances other than 

those associated with normal construction activity.  Buffers are being provided to the existing 

residential uses to the north to screen noise and dust from construction activity, so no 

adverse impacts are anticipated on the adjacent community. 

 

C:  Stormwater management will be provided in accordance with the Camden County 

stormwater manual and the UDO.  As series of lakes and ponds will be constructed to manage 

and retain stormwater in excess of the referenced requirements.  Surrounding drainage 

ditches will be improved and/or new ditches constructed in parallel to improve existing 

drainage conditions.   

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
am

d
en

Y
ar

d
_A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



 A 9 acre wastewater site has been set aside for use by Camden County or a public utility in 

the processing and disposal of wastewater generated from the development.  The developer 

is also willing to run a force main from the site to the county’s existing wastewater facility to 

the site.   

 

The subdivision is being designed in accordance with the NC Department of Energy, Mineral 

and Land Resources Sedimentation and Erosion control standards and will therefore minimize 

erosion and will contain siltation on site. 

 

The subdivision will be accessed by an existing road from US 17, which will be improved in 

consultation with NCDOT.  A second roadway connection is also being proposed to US 17 to 

properly manage traffic.  A Traffic Impact Analysis report will be prepared at the preliminary 

plat stage of the approval process. 

 

Also, the public welfare will be enhanced through the positive economic benefit that the 

development will have on Camden County’s finances. 

 

D:  The development is constant with many provisions of both the Camden County/US 17 

Corridor Master Plan and that the 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  Several of the consistencies are 

outlined below: 

  

With the Corridor Master Plan 

1.  An objective of the plan was “to create a thriving business community 

which will benefit the citizens of Camden County through local jobs, 

business opportunities, public revenue and quality of life for its citizens.”  

The proposed development supports these objectives. 

2. “New development should consider the characteristics of the residents and 

potential work force, infrastructure needs and availability, funding and 

investment, and quality of life which would be fostered by the new 

development, as well as new potential revenue and opportunities.”  All of 

these objectives will be enhanced through this development. 

3. The Corridor Master Plan recommends multi modal transportation 

including the use of Complete Streets design and the use of multi-use 

pathways to interconnect residential and recreational facilities within the 

development.  The project will be designed in accordance with these 

standards. 

 

The Project is Supported by the 2035 Comprehensive Plan in the following ways: 

1. The county’s future land use pattern should promote development in 

targeted locations…”along main road corridors”, served by public utilities. 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
am

d
en

Y
ar

d
_A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



2. “Camden County will have a diverse and balanced economy that provides 

new business opportunities to employee citizens and provide goods and 

services and that will generate revenues to fund high quality government 

facilities and services.” 

3.  “Provide infrastructure and facilities in a fiscally and responsible manner 

and take advantage of the opportunity for public and private partnerships 

to expand water and sewer capacity.”  The development will provide funds 

to facilitate those expansions. 

 

Action Strategies: 

 

 The Plan Indicates that the land use plan has “the flexibility to consider and 

explore new opportunities that arise in the future that were not part of the 

discussions when the land use plan was developed”.  The development of the Coastal 

Virginia Commerce Park is a new development that was not considered and now 

makes the Crouse Tract a viable site for mixed use development. 

 

The plan proposes “to ensure new development has a positive impact on the 

county budget.”  The developer has had an study done by NAHB that indicates that the 

development will have a highly significant and positive impact on the county budget 

and provide resources for many new opportunities in Camden County. 

 

E:  Rezoning is in the best interest of the public due to the positive fiscal impact it will have on 

the county budget, due to the shopping, dining, employment  and recreational opportunities 

that will be generated, due to land that will be set aside for fire, sheriff, EMS offices and for a 

new school, and additional revenue that will generated to be able to expand existing 

government service offerings. 

 

F: 

1.  The highway frontage on this tract is currently zoned Highway Commercial and will 

still be commercial after the rezoning takes place.  A shopping center and 

government offices are proposed along the highway after the rezoning.   

 

2. The back 889 acres is currently zoned Light Industrial. Since the Coastal Virginia 

Commerce Park is now being developed one half mile to the north, and there are 

hundreds of acres of undeveloped industrial zoned lands adjacent to this tract, it is 

not envisioned that light industrial zoning is appropriated at this stage.  The 

Coastal Virginia Commerce Park will create an extraordinary need for residential 

housing, shopping and recreational facilities which this site can provide, which will 

also benefit the citizens of Camden County. 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
am

d
en

Y
ar

d
_A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



  

 

 

5.A.b

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 2

_C
am

d
en

Y
ar

d
_A

p
p

lic
at

io
n

_A
tt

ac
h

m
en

ts
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.c

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 3

_D
ee

d
  (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.A.d

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 4

_2
02

3O
ct

23
-N

ei
g

h
b

o
rh

o
o

d
M

ee
ti

n
g

  (
C

ro
u

se
 T

ra
ct

 Z
o

n
in

g
 M

ap
 A

m
en

d
m

en
t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



5.A.e

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 5

_P
ro

p
o

se
d

_O
u

tl
in

eD
ev

el
o

p
m

en
tA

g
re

em
en

t 
 (

C
ro

u
se

 T
ra

ct
 Z

o
n

in
g

 M
ap

 A
m

en
d

m
en

t)



Crouse Tract Planned Development • Draft Terms and Conditions 

Statement of Planning Objectives: To build a community that has a creative 
design, providing a mix of residential uses in close proximity to one another, while 
at the same time providing an efficient use of open space that promotes an active 
lifestyle and a strong sense of community. Commercial development is also 
proposed to serve both the needs of the residents of this development and of the 
northern Camden community.  Land is also being set aside for government 
facilities, including land for schools, sheriff and fire stations, and satellite county 
administrative offices. 

a. The Phasing Plan attached to this terms and conditions document and incorporated
herein by reference as Schedule A (attached) shall be adhered to except that the
Developer may determine the sequence in which phases are developed. The
Developer may provide an annual update of the Phasing Plan for the development.

b. Development on the Property shall e i t he r  be connected to Camden County's
permitted and approved central wastewater treatment and disposal system, or to a
centralized wastewater treatment and disposal facility located on the
Crouse Tract.  A 9-acre parcel has been set aside for this purpose, and is
proposed to be conveyed to Camden County for public use.  The Property
will also connect to the Camden water system.

c. The density/intensity standards, dimensional standards and development standards
for development of the Property shall be in accordance with the Master Plan and
Schedule B (attached), subject to the degree of flexibility provided in these conditions.

d. Community form and design for development of the Property shall conform
generally to the typical renderings provided as part of the Master Plan. Variations
may be provided and shall be permitted in colors, materials, and architectural
detailing that are compatible with the design  concept.

e. Transportation:    Two subdivision   entrances are proposed from US 17.  The northern
entrance will involve a modification to the existing access; and a second access is
proposed, subject to NCDOT review and approval.  A   Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA)
wi l l  be prepared for this development a t  t h e  p r e l i m i n a r y  p l a t  s t a g e  o f
t h e  a p p r o v a l  p r o c e s s ,  a n d  r o a d w a y  i m p r o v e m e n t s  w i l l  b e
d e s i g n e d  i n  a c c o r d a n c e  w i t h  t h e  T I A  r e c o m m e n d a t i o n s  as
approved by NCDOT. Internal roads shall be designed in accordance with North
Carolina Department of Transportation ("NCDOT") standards, including adhering with
the “NC Complete Streets” standards to the greatest degree practicable, and shall be

Supplemental Documents



 

approved by NCDOT prior to construction. Roadways shall be laid out generally as 
shown on the Master Plan and in accordance with the typical sections shown on the 
Master Plan drawings. 

 

f. Potable Water: Water shall be supplied by Camden County via ex tens ion  o f  a  
wa te r l i ne  a long  US 17  tha t  w i l l  con nec t  with the existing water distribution 
system.   Individual lots and dwellings shall be metered. The Developer shall model 
the water system to demonstrate adequate 
water flow and pressure. 

 
g. Wastewater: A wastewater collection system will be constructed by the Developer 

and then dedicated to and managed by Camden County, or by a privately owned 
public utility if Camden County prefers not to own and operate the system. 

 
h. Stormwater: 

i. On-site stormwater will be managed by construction a series of stormwater 
management ponds that will be interconnected and will retain and slow-
release stormwater to existing drainage outlets both directly and indirectly. 

 
In addition to modeling and retaining stormwater to the UDO and Stormwater 
Manual standard for the 10-year developed condition and runoff, stormwater 
will be modeled for the 100- year storm event and property line berms 
constructed as necessary to manage the 100-year storm without adversely 
impacting neighboring properties. 
Stormwater will be conveyed to on-site retention ponds through a 
combination of curbs with inlets, stormwater pipes and open, vegetated 
swales. 
The Improvements set forth in this section shall be maintained by the 
Developer, or a management association created by the Developer. 

 

j. Perimeter compatibility shall be addressed as follows: 

 
i. Minimum 50-foot vegetated buffers shall be provided to existing residential 

development along areas adjacent to residential properties. 
ii. Commercial development is adjacent to US 17 and within existing property 

that was previously zoned Highway Commercial in anticipation of this type 
of development.  The commercial property is also located away from 
existing residential development. 

iii. Architectural Features: Building placement, design features, orientation 
and entryways will promote compatibility with adjacent properties. 

 



 

k. Environmental Protection and Monitoring: Wetlands subject to the jurisdiction of the US 
Army Corps of Engineers will be delineated and confirmed by the Corps of Engineers. The 
Association documents (Declaration) will include provisions that prohibit the filling of 
wetlands and prohibit the wholesale clearing of any woodlands other than incidental tree 
cutting and vegetation removal, and for stormwater management.  Traditional forest 
management practices will also be utilized in areas that are to remain wooded. 

 
 

A community association, either itself or via a management entity, will assume 
responsibility for ongoing operation and maintenance of all stormwater 
management facilities in accordance with the Camden County UDO requirements 
and all NCDEQ permit requirements. The association dues will be structured in a 
way that funds are provided for the upkeep of these facilities, as well as a 
contribution to off-site ditch maintenance as may be necessary to keep outfalls open 
and flowing. 

 
I. Developer general responsibilities: 

The developer is responsible to design and construct or install the 
required and proposed on site public utilities in compliance with applicable 
county, state and federal regulations. 

The developer shall dedicate to the public the right-of-way and easements 
necessary to construct or install the required and proposed on site public 
facilities in compliance with applicable county, state and federal regulations. 

 
NCDOT will be petitioned to assume ownership and maintenance of roadways as  
sections of the development are completed and built out. 
 
In addition to the 9-acre wastewater site outlined in paragraph b. above, the developer  
will convey to Camden County a site of approximately 5.7 acres for the construction of 
governmental facilities as needed, and a site of approximately 30 acres for the 
construction of a new school, in accordance with the proposed Development Agreement 
that has been offered to govern the development of the Property. 

 





Schedule B

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS AND SETBACKS

Commercial Single Family Lot Townhome Lot Apartments

Min Lot Size N/A 6500 SF 1,800 SF N/A

Typ. Lot Size N/A 7,000-40,000 1,800-2400 SF N/A

Min Lot Width N/A 50' 20' N/A

Typ. Lot Width N/A 60'-200' 20'-25' N/A

Front Setback 10'(parking)50'(Bldg.) 20' 15' N/A

Side Setback 10'(parking)0'(Internal) 5'-15' 0 N/A

Corner Side Setback 10'(parking) 15' 10' N/A

Max. Front Setback N/A 100' 40' N/A

Max. Height 35' 35' 35' 35'

Max. Bldg. Size N/A 4800 SF 15,000 SF 45,000 SF

Max. Lot Coverage 80% 60% 90% N/A

Max. Floor Area Ratio 0.4 N/A N/A 0.4

Min. Set-back to Adj.   

Residential Dev. 50' 50' 50' 50'



 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 
for 

The Crouse Tract 
 

The following is a summary of the anticipated Fiscal Impact for The  Crouse Tract Planned Development 
based on the current plan that is being reviewed for P.D. approval: 
 

A. Estimated Total Property Valuation at Build-out: 
748 Single-family Homes @ $395,000 (average)…………………………………..$295,460,000 
414 Townhome Dwellings @ $315.000 (average)…………………………………$130,410,000 
528 Multifamily Dwellings @ $225,000 (average)…………………………………$118,800,000 
150,000 sq. ft. Commercial Development @ $150/sq. ft………………………$  22,500,000 
 
Estimated Total Value at Build-out……………………….………………………………$567,170,000 

 
B. Tax Revenue (Annual): 

The positive operational impact on Camden County at full buildout is estimated to be as follows: 
Ad Valorem Tax:  .74/100 x $567,170,000……………………………………...…..$4,197,000 
 South Mills Fire Tax:  0.04/100 x $567,170,000…………….…………….……..$    226,868 

 
Total Estimated Annual Tax Revenue:…………………...……………………..…….$4,423,868 

 
C. Annual Fees: 

Solid Waste Fee:  $75/yr. x 1690 Properties………………………………….……..$ 126,750/year 
Stormwater Fee:  $10/yr. x 1190 Properties………………………………..…..…..$   11,900/year (min.) 

 
D. Water and Sewer Fees 

Water Fees (System Development Fees): $1,690 x $2,500/Conn….……… $4,225,000 
        (Connection Fees):  $1,690 x $1,000/Conn…….…………….………$1,690,000 
 Subtotal, Water Fees:                  $5,915,000 
Sewer Fees (System Development Fees):  $1,690 x $7,400.....................$12,506,000 

-      (Connection Fees):  $1,690 x $500..........................................$     845,000 
Subtotal, Sewer Fees:..................................................................$13,351,000 

 
 Total, Water & Sewer Fees (estimate)………………………………..…….………….$19,266,000 
 

E. Other Revenue Sources: 
Transfer Taxes on Home Sales:  1.0% x $425,870,000..……………….………...$4,258,700 
Revenue Stamps:  0.2% x $425,870..…………………………………………….……….$    851,740 
     Subtotal:………………………………………………………………………………………..….$5,110,440 
 
Development Review Fees:  1690 Units @ $150/unit………...……………..…..$253,500 
Building Permit Fees: 1,190 Homes @ 1,300/home (Average)….……………$1,547,000 (estimated) 
 
           Subtotal:……………………………………………………………………………………….$1,800,500 
 
Total, Estimated Other Revenue:…………………………………………………………….$6,910,940 
 
 



 
 
 
 
Summary of Revenue: 
 
One-time Revenue:…………………………………………………………………………………$20,261,940 
 
Annual Revenue:.……………………………………………………………………………………$  4,562,518 




	1PlanningBoardPacket20240417.pdf
	Agenda Packet
	I. Call to Order & Welcome
	II. Consideration of Agenda
	III. Consideration of Minutes
	A. Planning Board Minutes
	Printout: Planning Board Minutes
	a. 1_PBminutes_2024-01_17-final
	b. 2_RezoningStaffReportPB-UpdatedMinutes
	c. 3_TextAmendmentsOrdinance_2023-01-17


	IV. Old Business
	V. New Business
	A. Crouse Tract Zoning Map Amendment
	Printout: Crouse Tract Zoning Map Amendment
	a. 1_CrousePropertyRezoningStaffReportPB
	b. 2_CamdenYard_Application_Attachments
	c. 3_Deed
	d. 4_2023Oct23-NeighborhoodMeeting
	e. 5_Proposed_OutlineDevelopmentAgreement


	VI. Information from Board and Staff
	VII. Consider Date of Next Meeting
	VIII. Adjourn

	Appendix
	3.A · Planning Board Minutes
	3.A.a · 1_PBminutes_2024-01_17-final
	3.A.b · 2_RezoningStaffReportPB-UpdatedMinutes
	3.A.c · 3_TextAmendmentsOrdinance_2023-01-17

	5.A · Crouse Tract Zoning Map Amendment
	5.A.a · 1_CrousePropertyRezoningStaffReportPB
	5.A.b · 2_CamdenYard_Application_Attachments
	5.A.c · 3_Deed
	5.A.d · 4_2023Oct23-NeighborhoodMeeting
	5.A.e · 5_Proposed_OutlineDevelopmentAgreement



	SupplementalDocuments.pdf
	ConditionsSchedulesDraft.pdf
	Scanned from a Xerox Multifunction Printer (011).pdf
	2-13-24 Draft Terms  Conditions with Schedules (004).pdf
	water flow and pressure.


	FISCAL IMPACT STATEMENT 2-13-24.pdf
	MasterPlan.pdf




